
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., February 25, 2025  

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, February 18, 2025 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, February 23, 2025 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – February 06, 2025 

                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2025-015 ……………………………………………………….             1 - 2 

Resolution approving Above-Step Recruitment for the Accountant I 

(Permanent Position) 

2. Resolution No. FY2025-016 ………………………………………………………..            3 - 4 

Resolution approving Above-Step Recruitment for the Accountant III 

(Temporary Position) 

3. Resolution No. FY2025-012 ………………………………………………………..           5 - 17 

Resolution approving the Write-Off of Tenant Accounts Receivable 

4. Intent of Award ……………….. ……………………………………………………….          18 - 21     

IFB GHURA-25-001; Rehabilitation of the Hagatna Soup Kitchen 

5. Intent of Award ……………….. ……………………………………………………….          22 - 25     

IFB GHURA-25-002; Renovation of MOD 9 for AMPs 1, 2 & 4 

6. Change Order #1 ……………….. …………………………………………………….           26 - 27     

IFB GHURA-24-004; Renovation and Upgrade of Basketball Court at 

Toto Gardens and Construction of Generator Room 

 

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

2. Division Updates 

  

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, March 25, 2025 

@ 12:00 p.m.   

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 









 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 1 of 11 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., February 6, 2025 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of 
the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to 
order at 12:05 P.M., Thursday, February 6, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor 
Conference room. Chairman Rivera indicated that 6 of 6 members of the Board of 
Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as 
scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83939708098?pwd=pNKXZ8P3JsurgbyffUReXtoq 

YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual             In-Person             
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person       
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual             In-Person       
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person   
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person        
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted and acknowledged via email.  

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director          Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator     Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director           Sonny Perez, AE Manager             Naricel Carlos     
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                     Norma San Nicolas  
Frances Danieli, Controller                               Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager  
Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner         Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager  
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator     Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager  
Antonio Camacho, Procurement                     Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager  
Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager                         Jolyn Terlaje   
Nicole Alejandro                                                Miguel Fernandez          Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff  
Michael Ricuyal                                                   Ervin Santiago     
Maria Cherry Canete □                                         Patrick Luces  
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA   
 

Public None indicated virtually 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Thursday, January 30, 2025 

    2nd Printing – Tuesday, February 4, 2025 
 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 2 of 11 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [390/25] Commissioner Delia moved to 

approve the board meeting minutes of December 10, 2024. Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2025-013, 
Resolution 
commending Ms. 
Lucy R. Awa, 
Accountant I, for 
her dedication and 
contribution to the 
Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal 
Authority, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[391/24] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2025-013 on pages 1 of 
11 in the GHURA Board of Commissioners 
(BoC) February 6, 2025, meeting packet, 
which can be found on the GHURA 
website.  

Chairman Rivera presented Resolution 
FY2025-013 to Ms. Lucy R. Awa.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[392/24] Commissioner 

Delia moved to approve 

Resolution No. 

FY2025-013, 

Resolution 

commending Ms. Lucy 

R. Awa, Accountant I, 

for her dedication and 

contributions to the 

Guam Housing and 

Urban Renewal 

Authority. Resident 

Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion.  

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 3 of 11 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

2. Resolution No. 
FY2025-014, 
Resolution 
commending Mrs. 
Norma P. San 
Nicolas, Section 8 
Administrator, for 
her dedication and 
contribution to the 
Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal 
Authority (GHURA) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[393/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2025-014, Resolution 
commending Mrs. Norma P. San Nicolas, 
Section 8 Administrator, for her 
dedication and contribution to the Guam 
Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 
(GHURA) on page 2 of 11 in the GHURA 
Board of Commissioners (BoC) February 
6, 2025, meeting packet which can be 
found on the GHURA website.  

Deputy Director Esteves thanked Ms. San 
Nicolas for her hard work, mentorship, and 
dedication for her years of service to the 
community of Guam.  

Director Napoli also thanked Ms. San Nicolas 
for her leadership, institutional knowledge, 
and her development of the policies and 
procedures of the Section 8 Program at 
GHURA.  

Chairman Rivera presented Resolution 
No. FY2025-014, Resolution commending 
Mrs. Norma P. San Nicolas, Section 8 
Administrator, for her dedication and 
contribution to the Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[394/25] Commissioner 

Torres moved to approve 

Resolution No. FY2025-

014, Resolution 

commending Mrs. Norma 

P. San Nicolas, Section 8 

Administrator, for her 

dedication and 

contribution to the Guam 

Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority 

(GHURA). Vice Chairman 

Sanchez seconded the 

motion. There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 4 of 11 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

3. Intent of Award- IFB 
GHURA-24-14; GPD 
Eastern Sub Station, 
Talofofo, Guam 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[395/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-24-14, 
GPD Eastern Substation, Talofofo, Guam 
on pages 4-11 of 11 in the GHURA Board 
of Commissioners (BoC) February 6, 
2025, meeting packet, which can be found 
on the GHURA website.  

Resident Commissioner Corpus inquired 
about whether the Bid Bond is a 
requirement. Mr. Antonio Camacho, Housing 
Procurement Manager, stated that if a bid 
bond is not submitted, the vendor would be 
deemed unresponsive.  

Commissioner Torres inquired about the 
location of the project. Mr. Sonny Perez, AE 
Manager, stated that it is in the village of 
Talofofo, on Jose P. Cruz Street, 
perpendicular to Chalan Kanton Ladera.  

Executive Director Napoli stated that the 
project was planned due to only having one 
southern precinct, in the village of Agat on 
the western side. This had made it 
challenging for police officers to respond to 
the eastern side of the island. The concept of 
building a police substation on the eastern 
side of the island would benefit the residents 
of the area as far as safety and security and 
provide more assistance for the police 
officers. 

Chairman Rivera inquired about the biggest 
variances among the line items in the bids. 
Mr. Sonny Perez, AE Manager, indicated that 
the reason may be that it could be an 
administrative function that has to be 
contracted out.  

Vice Chairman Sanchez inquired about the 
commencement of construction once the bid 
is awarded. Mr. Perez stated that there is a 
timeline for design, which is a sixty-day 
period. A way to keep the project moving 
would be to possibly apply for a clearing 
permit during the design period.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[396/25] Vice Chairman 

Sanchez moved to 

approve the Intent of 

Award-IFB GHURA-24-

14, GPD Eastern 

Substation, Talofofo, 

Guam to Surface 

Solutions in the 

amount of $5,588,000. 

Design of sixty (60) 

consecutive calendar 

days, Construction of 

540 consecutive 

calendar days with no 

option periods and not 

exceeding 

$5,588,000.00. 

Commissioner Delia 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously. 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 5 of 11 
 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. 2024 Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits 
(LIHTC)/Application 
Cycle 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[397/25] Executive Director Napoli 
recapped what transpired in the LIHTC 
cycle and recommended what the board 
should consider. She read the 
memorandum addressed to the board on 
pages 12-14 of 18 in the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners (BoC) February 6, 2025, 
meeting packet which can be found on the 
GHURA website.  

Chairman Rivera indicated that there were 
some objections to the first presentation of 
the 2024 cycle. He requested that Mr. Eliseo 
Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA, brief the 
board on GHURA’s stance on the objections. 
Mr. Florig indicated the following: 

• On December 18, 2024, notices were 
issued to all five (5) applicants stating 
that monies had been reserved to 
Flores Rosa and that they had the 
opportunity to appeal the decision. 

• Summer Vista II and III submitted an 
appeal dated January 6, 2025 

• Upon review and based on GHURA’s 
Appeals and Procedures, it was 
determined that the appeal submitted 
was untimely.  

• Appeal period is a ten (10) day 
calendar period, which is from the day 
of notice, December 18, 2024.  GHURA 
denied the appeal.  

• February 3, 2025, Ms. Tang, Legal 
Counsel for Summer Vista II and III, 
submitted another Notice of appeal in 
protest of GHURA’s decision and the 
process relating to the 2024 LIHTC 
QAP 

• Ms. Tang then filed a Notice of 
Procurement Appeal at the Office of 
Public Accountability (OPA) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 6 of 11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• GHURA will be responding to the OPA.  
 

• The award to Flores Rosa can be 
considered separate from the 
remaining funds in the 2024 and 2025 
LIHTC cycle. This matter is ongoing.  

Chairman Rivera indicated that based on Mr. 
Florig’s summary, it does not prohibit the 
board from moving forward with the options 
being presented. Mr. Florig confirmed this as 
it is a separate matter. 

Commissioner Delia asked if the appeal was 
based on the $1.73 million dollars that was 
awarded. Mr. Florig indicated that the $1.73 
million is the only amount reserved and 
clarified that it isn’t awarded until the project 
is completed and has met all the criteria in 
the QAP.  

Commissioner Delia also stated that she 
requested that the board be provided with 
copies of the score sheets, which were not 
provided. Deputy Director Esteves stated that 
all the information could not be viewed 
unless the non-disclosure agreements and 
Conflict of Interest documents were 
submitted by all the panelists.  

Chairman Rivera clarified that the action 
before the board is what to do with the 
remaining balance and in conjunction with 
that, how to proceed with the 2025 cycle 
based on the recommendations by the 
Director and Deputy Director. The 
recommendations are: 

• Hold off on any awards for the 2024 
cycle and add it to the 2025 
application cycle which would bring 
the total amount to $8,206,880.00, 
which will need to open.  

Commissioner Torres inquired about when 
the 2025 Application cycle will begin. Ms. 
Katherine Taitano, Chief Planner, stated that 
there have been discussions about starting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 7 of 11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the cycles sooner. The process to begin a new 
cycle involves the preparation of a 2025 QAP, 
public review, public comment, and 
presentation to the board for approval. The 
timeline, which could possibly begin 
sometime in April, should also provide 
enough time to submit an application.  
 
Ms. Joyce Tang, Counsel for CoreTech, 
requested to speak to the board regarding 
GHURA’s decision that is pending. Based on 
Mr. Florig’s advice, Chairman Rivera agreed to 
let Ms. Tang speak during General 
Discussions.  
 
Deputy Director Esteves clarified what the 
action will be for this old business item. He 
stated that based on a project that was 
awarded in 2024, the board will be voting to 
close out the 2024 QAP. He added that there 
woulf be no projects to be awarded under 
that funding source and that based on the 
recommendations, will be rolled into the 
2025 cycle and to future allocations.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[398/25]  
Commissioner Torres 
moved to approve 
awarding no other 
projects and hold back 
the balance from the 
2024 Cycle to be 
allocated to the 
coming 2025 
Application Cycle for a 
total of $8,206,880.00 
with the $4,751,880.00 
remaining balance of 
2024 Tax Credits plus 
$3,455,000.00 Tax 
Credits. Vice Chairman 
Sanchez seconded the 
motion. There were no 
objections. Motion 
passed unanimously.  

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 8 of 11 
 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 [399/25] Chairman Rivera passed the floor 
to the Ms. Tang, Counsel for CoreTech. Ms. 
Tang stated the following: 

• They disagreed with GHURA’s counsel’s 
position that the denial of the protest 
was appropriate or that the GHURA’s 
Appeal Process and Procedure is 
enforced and that it is lawful to follow it.  

• They have filed an appeal with the OPA 
• Under 5 GCA 5425G, the Government 

Operations, Guam Procurement Law 
states that in the event of a timely 
protest under subsection A of this 
section or under subsection A of 5480 of 
the chapter, Guam shall not proceed 
further with the solicitation or of the 
award of the contract prior to final 
resolution of such protest and any such 
further action is void. 

• She pointed out that voting on this 
particular resolution is a violation 
because the 2024 LIHTC solicitation was 
suspended upon the filing of the appeal 
with the OPA, and no further actions will 
be taken as such actions will be void.  

• She recommended that the board should 
not take any action as it is clear that an 
appeal has been filed with the OPA.  

Chairman Rivera thanked Ms. Tang for her 
recommendation, but deferred to Mr. Florig, 
Counsel for GHURA. 

Mr. Florig indicated that due to the differences 
of opinions, GHURA will go with the process 
and not make any comment on what is 
currently happening until GHURA files its 
documents with the proper authorities.  

Ms. Tang inquired if GHURA agreed that it is 
required to suspend all actions with respect to 
the 2024 LIHTC solicitation until such time the 
appeal before the OPA is resolved. Mr. Florig 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 9 of 11 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

stated that GHURA would answer Ms. Tang’s 
questions through its filings with the OPA.  

Mr. Marsil Johnson, Counsel for Flores Rosa, 
requested to speak before the board. Chairman 
Rivera approved Mr. Johnson’s request. Mr. 
Johnson stated that they were concerned 
whether there is any loss of tax credits that 
would be afforded by turning over the 2024 tax 
credits into 2025 and added that they believe 
that $500,000.00 or $1,000,000.00 worth of tax 
credits might be lost if rolled over into the 2025 
allocation due to the delay. He inquired about 
whether the board had any information about 
it.  

Ms. Taitano stated that the jurisdictions have 
been notified of the 2025 allocations. Executive 
Director Napoli also added that the total from 
the 2024 balance plus the 2025 allocations do 
not seem to indicate a loss of any tax credits.  

Ms. Tang asked if the allocation agreement had 
been signed between Flores Rosa and GHURA 
as she had sent a Sunshine Act Request that she 
has yet to get a response. She asked if the board 
was aware of this. Mr. Florig indicated that he 
would follow up with the request and get back 
to her.  

Executive Director Napoli requested the board 
save the date for the Ribbon Cutting Event for 
the long awaiting Guma Famalao’an Lighthouse 
Recovery Center for Women at Tiyan.  

A total of $500,000,000 in disaster recovery 
funds was awarded to Guam. Governor Leon 
Guerrero and Director Napoli agreed that 
Deputy Director Esteves would spearhead this 
six-year project and the management of the 
award.   

Deputy Director Esteves stated the following: 

• The Office of Disaster Recovery team 
was on Guam to provide technical 
assistance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 10 of 11 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• General timeline was posted on January 
21, 2025. This started the 90-day 
process to submit the Action Plan. 

• Processes include public engagement, 
public input, public comment, and 
stakeholder engagements. Responses 
will be provided.  

• More information will be provided to 
the board as it comes 

 

Chairman Rivera thanked the team that put 
together the 2025 Housing Summit. He 
expressed his appreciation to Deputy Director 
Esteves for his presentation at the Summit 
which he believed to be outstanding. Chairman 
Rivera also thanked GHURA for its efforts in 
acquiring half a billion dollars to be used to 
better this community. He added that he hopes 
that the community understands the magnitude 
of what GHURA has brought to the table and 
how it will continue to push forward. We all 
contribute. We are all here to serve.  

Chairman Rivera announced the next item on 
the agenda, the executive session.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[400/25] Vice Chairman 

Sanchez motioned for a 

closed Executive Session. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed. Meeting paused 

for executive session.  

  



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2025                                                      Page 11 of 11 
 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Next proposed 
scheduled Board 
Meeting; February 25 @ 
12:00 p.m. 

 [401/25] 

Commissioner Delia 

moved to adjourn the 

February 6, 2025 BoC 

meeting. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. 

The motion passed. 

The meeting was 

adjourned at 2:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL 
 
             ______________________________ 
       Elizabeth F. Napoli 
       Board Secretary / Executive Director 
   
       Date __________________________ 

    



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-015 

 
 
Moved by:                   Seconded by:    ________                         . 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP RECRUITMENT FOR THE ACCOUNTANT 
I (PERMANENT POSITION) 

 
WHEREAS, Under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its 

Board of Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical 
experts, agents and employees, permanent and temporary as it may 
deem necessary; and shall determine their qualifications, duties, tenure 
and compensation...”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Title 4 of the Guam Code Annotated, “…The appointing authority, or the 

head of an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4 
GCA,§4105(a) may petition the Director of Administration, the Judicial 
Council (as to Judicial Branch employment) or the agency, department or 
public corporation’s governing board or commission (as to an agency, 
department or public corporation listed in 4GCA §4105(a)) for recruitment 
at a higher step not to exceed Step 10, because of documented difficulty 
or exceptional qualifications……”; and 

 

WHEREAS, despite recruitment difficulty, both our current and past auditors have 
recommended that the Authority add additional accounting staff to the 
Authority’s fiscal division; and 

 
WHEREAS, on 12/02/2024, Ms. Floila Gaza Camacho was selected to the Accountant 

I position and submitted her request to Executive Management requesting 
the GHURA Board of Commissioners review and approval of an above 
the minimum step recruitment for the classified position of Accountant I 
based on exceptional qualifications; and 

 
WHEREAS, executive management and the board recognizes that above step 

recruitments are a tool for positions that are difficult to recruit for and for 
those with exceptional qualifications; and  

 
WHEREAS, given the fact that Accountant positions are in demand, and are difficult to 

recruit for, Ms. Camacho makes a compelling argument for an above step 
recruitment based on her exceptional qualifications even at the 
Accountant I level classification; and  

 
WHEREAS, Ms. Camacho’s exceptional qualifications for the Accountant I position 

consists of the following: 
 

• College degree – Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy. Polytechnic 

University of the Philippines, 2000. 

• Work Experience - private sector – with 22 years in financial accounting:  

1. Logistics industry – Port Net Logistics Inc., Paranaque City, Philippines – 

Accounting Clerk to Accounts Payable in Charge – 10 years. 

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 1 of 27



▪ Handled and monitored Daily Cash, bank deposits, check 

releasing.  

▪ Handled accounts payable for local and foreign agents and 

prepared checks and arranged wire transfers 

▪ Assisted in payroll preparations and inputted in banking systems 

▪ Assisted in tax preparations and filing 

2. Conglomerate industry – Jones & Guerrero Company Inc., Hagåtña, Guam 

– Corporate Accounting Clerk to Corporate Accountant – 12 years.  

▪ Gathering monthly data such as cash receipts, check 

disbursements, etc. 

▪ Preparations of monthly reports, reconciliations, invoices, etc.  

▪ Preparation of monthly journal entries needed for posting 

▪ Coordinate with affiliates and divisions for transactions, 

payables, and receivables.  

▪ Assist auditors during annual company audits. 

 
WHEREAS, Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits 

(i.e. retirement, holidays, annual/sick leave etc.) is reasonable and 
respectfully requests an above step recruitment of Ms. Camacho, LG5-
4(A), $48,004 p/a; $23.08 p/hr.; and   

 
WHEREAS, the GHURA Board recognizes it has the discretionary authority to go 

below or beyond management’s recommendations (i.e., LG5-2(A), 
$42,724 p/a; $20.54 p/hr. through LG5-10(F), $71,480 p/a; $34.37 p/hr. - 
maximum), but supports management’s request for the above-step 
recruitment; and 

 
WHEREAS, Funding for this position is available from COCC Funds; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that in consideration of the applicant’s exceptional knowledge and 
experience, the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step 
recruitment for:  
 

Ms. Floila Gaza Camacho, Accountant I (Permanent Position), 
LG5-4(A), $48,004 p/a; $23.08 p/hr. 

 
 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – FEBRUARY 25, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:  
NAYES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted 
by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 
Authority Board of Commissioners on  
February 25, 2025. 
 
 

    ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
   (SEAL)   Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 2 of 27



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-016 

 

 

Moved by:                      Seconded by:__      __                                  ___   

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP RECRUITMENT FOR THE 

ACCOUNTANT III (TEMPORARY POSITION) 

 

WHEREAS, Under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its Board 

of Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical experts, agents 

and employees, permanent and temporary as it may deem necessary; and shall 

determine their qualifications, duties, tenure and compensation...”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Title 4 of the Guam Code Annotated, “…The appointing authority, or the head of 

an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4 GCA,§4105(a) may 

petition the Director of Administration, the Judicial Council (as to Judicial 

Branch employment) or the agency, department or public corporation’s 

governing board or commission (as to an agency, department or public 

corporation listed in 4GCA §4105(a)) for recruitment at a higher step not to 

exceed Step 10, because of documented difficulty or exceptional 

qualifications……”; and 

 

WHEREAS, despite recruitment difficulty, both our current and past auditors have 

recommended that the Authority add additional accounting staff to the 

Authority’s fiscal division; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to staffing shortages and to expedite recruitment, the Authority sought a 

temporary appointment; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a temporary position, Mr. Renemar C. De Guzman submitted his request to 

Executive Management on 01/09/2025, requesting the GHURA Board of 

Commissioners for an above the minimum step recruitment for the position of 

Accountant III based on exceptional qualifications; and 

 

WHEREAS, executive management and the board recognizes that above step recruitments are 

a tool for positions that are difficult to recruit for and for those with exceptional 

qualifications; and  

 

WHEREAS, given the fact that Accountant positions are in demand, and are difficult to recruit 

for, Mr. De Guzman makes a compelling argument for an above step recruitment 

based on his exceptional qualifications at the Accountant III level classification; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, Mr. De Guzman’s exceptional qualifications for the Accountant III position 

consists of the following: 

 

• US Certified Public Accountant (CPA) – May 2017 – Guam License #3775 

• Bachelors of Business Administration in Accounting (BBAA) – Magna Cum 

Laude, University of Guam, December 2014 

• Certified Management Accountant – Part I, June 2023; Part II, October 2023 

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 3 of 27



• 6 years – Tourism industry – Baba Corporation, Tumon, Guam – Accounts 

Receivable Clerk to Assistant Accounting Manager  

o As needed, supervised a three-person accounting team 

o Prepared various reports and correspondents  

o Monitored upcoming cash requirements on a daily/weekly/monthly 

basis and communicate changes related to budgeted expectations  

o Researched relevant changes to GAAP and inform management 

using authoritative literature  

o Processed payroll, payroll liabilities, file quarterly tax returns  

o Created reservation & billing standard operating procedures 

  

• 2 years – Landscaping industry – Proferre Inc., Tumon, Guam – Senior 

Accountant 

o Performed basic accounting functions (billing, receivables, payables, 

ledgers, reconciliations) 

o Prepared monthly financial reports, ad-hoc reports 

o Coordinated the completion of year-end financial statement review 

 

WHEREAS, Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits (i.e. 

retirement, holidays, annual/sick leave etc) is reasonable and respectfully 

requests an above step recruitment of Mr. De Guzman, NG5-7(E), $69,610 p/a; 

$33.47 p/hr; and   

 

WHEREAS, the GHURA Board recognizes it has the discretionary authority to go below or 

beyond management’s recommendations (i.e., NG5-2(A), $50,044 p/a; $24.06 

p/hr through NG5-10(F), $83,727 p/a; $40.25 p/hr - maximum), but supports 

management’s request for the above-step recruitment; and 

 

WHEREAS, Funding for this position is available from the COCC Funds; and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, that in consideration of the applicant’s exceptional knowledge and experience, 

the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step requirement for:  

 

Mr. Renemar C. De Guzman, Accountant III (Temporary Position), 

NG5-7(E), $69,610 p/a; $33.47 p/hr. 

 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – FEBRUARY 25, 2025 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:  

NAYES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAINED:  

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 

correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the 

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board 

of Commissioners on February 25, 2025. 

         (SEAL) 

 

                                                                 ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                                    Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 4 of 27



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-012 

 

 

Moved By:       Seconded By:   

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WRITE-OFF OF TENANT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 

WHEREAS, the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is the Guam public housing authority that provides 

decent homes and suitable living environments for Guam families of low income to afford to pay for safe, 

sanitary and decent dwelling accommodations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the governance and well-being of GHURA is vested in the Board of Commissioners (BOC) and empowered 

by 12 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 5, Section 5104; and  

 

WHEREAS, BOC Resolution No. FY2018-002 Resolution Adopting the Write-Off Policy for Uncollectible Accounts for 

GHURA Rental Properties; and 

 

WHEREAS, in the normal course of business, the Authority is involved in transactions that result in monies being owed to 

GHURA for which they are unable to collect, and as necessary,  

 

WHEREAS, the Property Site Managers submit summaries of debts considered for write-off to prevent overstating of assets 

which are affecting the Authority’s financial performance; and 

 

WHEREAS, currently, GHURA's receivables include outstanding accounts, which have remained in GHURA's books for 

over 90 days as of December 31, 2024, as indicated below; and 

 

Property Site Write-Off Amount 

AMP 1  $   1,526.54 
AMP 2  $   4,901.98 
AMP 3  $   6,922.84 
AMP 4  $   4,696.20 

          

   $ 18,047.56 
 

WHEREAS, GHURA, through the Property Site Managers, exert diligent collection efforts in pursuit of outstanding 

receivables, and although ongoing collection efforts are abandoned on these accounts, GHURA reserves the 

right and duty to collect should the opportunity arise; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in accordance with GHURA's procedure and good business practices to write-off accounts receivables 

after all reasonable collection procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that 

the accounts will be collected; now, therefore be it  

 

RESOLVED, that the BOC approves writing off $18,047.56 of GHURA receivables after all reasonable collection procedures 

have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that the accounts will be collected. 

 

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – FEBRUARY 25, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED: 

                                                                                        I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy 
                                                                                              of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban 

       Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on February 25, 2025. 
 
 

(S E A L) 
 

                                                                         _________________________________________ 
                       Elizabeth F. Napoli 

                                                  Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 5 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 6 of 27



20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

W
rit

e 
O

ff
 A

m
ou

nt
4,

39
9

8,
94

2
4,

40
3

16
,1

45
27

,4
24

1,
52

7

Re
nt

 B
al

an
ce

1,
07

4
90

8
(4

06
)

4,
00

7
13

,3
55

75

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 C
ha

rg
es

4,
22

5
9,

17
4

5,
61

8
14

,3
74

19
,9

89
1,

60
7

W
or

k 
O

rd
er

s
62

5
12

5

La
te

 F
ee

s
22

5

 (5
,0

00
)

 -

 5
,0

00

 1
0,

00
0

 1
5,

00
0

 2
0,

00
0

 2
5,

00
0

 3
0,

00
0

In US Dollars Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

AM
P 

1 
W

rit
e 

O
ff

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 7 of 27



G
U

AM
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

N
D

 U
RB

A
N

 R
EN

EW
AL

 A
U

TH
O

RI
TY

W
RI

TE
-O

FF
 B

AL
A

N
CE

S 
FO

R 
AM

P 
1

As
 o

f 

 P
ay

m
en

t 
/ 

A
dj

us
tm

en
t 

1

2B
 V

D
P 

M
O

N
G

M
O

N
G

4/
1/

20
24

30
 D

ay
 V

ol
un

ta
ril

y 
- U

ni
t 

Is
su

es
12

/5
/2

02
4

4/
4/

20
24

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
 (1

0.
00

)
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
Pa

ym
en

t m
ad

e 
12

/0
5/

20
24

2

4A
 C

AM
IA

 
SI

N
AJ

AN
A

7/
3/

20
24

30
 D

ay
 V

ol
un

ta
ril

y 
- 

Cl
os

er
 to

 F
am

ily
N

/A
7/

11
/2

02
4

39
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 $

   
   

  9
36

.5
4 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
  1

25
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

  (
15

0.
00

)
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  9

50
.5

4 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  9
65

.5
4 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 d
at

e

3

1B
 A

TI
S 

SI
N

AJ
AN

A
8/

1/
20

24
30

 D
AY

 V
ol

un
ta

ril
y-

O
ff

 
Is

la
nd

8/
3/

20
23

8/
6/

20
24

26
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 $

   
   

  6
70

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
  (

15
0.

00
)

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
46

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  5

61
.0

0 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 d

at
e

T
O

T
A

L
:

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
6.

54
$ 

   
 

1,
68

1.
54

$ 
   

 
12

5.
00

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(3

00
.0

0)
$ 

   
   

 
(1

0.
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
1,

49
6.

54
$ 

   
   

   
 

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
52

6.
54

$ 
   

   
   

 

 L
eg

al
/C

ou
rt

 
F

ee
s 

U
ni

t 
#

M
ov

e 
O

ut
 

D
at

e
C

lo
se

d 
O

ut
 

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
 D

at
e

R
ea

so
n 

fo
r 

T
er

m
in

at
io

n
L

as
t 

P
ay

m
en

t 
D

at
e

 C
le

an
in

g 
C

ha
rg

es
 

 S
ec

ur
it

y 
D

ep
os

it
  

 (
U

ti
lit

y 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t)
/R

en
t 

A
ft

er
 M

ov
e 

O
ut

 

C
om

m
en

ts
 A

/R
 B

al
an

ce
 

(C
lo

se
d)

 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4

 D
R

T
 F

ee
s 

 A
/R

 B
al

an
ce

 
(C

lo
se

d)
 L

E
SS

 
A

D
J/

P
M

T
 +

 D
R

T
 

F
ee

s 

 L
at

e 
F

ee
s 

 W
or

k 
O

rd
er

s 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 N
AR

CI
SS

A 
P.

 A
D

A

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 8 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 9 of 27



20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

Su
m

 o
f W

rit
e 

O
ff

 A
m

ou
nt

6,
97

2.
25

8,
21

2.
39

1,
12

6.
00

15
,2

66
.0

2
16

,3
69

.0
0

4,
90

1.
98

Su
m

 o
f R

en
t B

al
an

ce
7,

65
9.

00
9,

26
3.

00
1,

32
1.

00
10

,9
62

.3
2

15
,9

59
.0

0
4,

82
6.

98

Su
m

 o
f C

le
an

in
g 

Ch
ar

ge
s

36
3.

25
22

4.
39

21
0.

00
5,

92
3.

70
1,

76
0.

00
82

5.
00

Su
m

 o
f W

O
RK

 O
RD

ER
S

Su
m

 o
f L

AT
E 

FE
ES

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

6,
00

0.
00

8,
00

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0

12
,0

00
.0

0

14
,0

00
.0

0

16
,0

00
.0

0

18
,0

00
.0

0

In US Dollars Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

AM
P 

2 
W

rit
e 

O
ff

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 10 of 27



G
U

AM
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

N
D

 U
RB

AN
 R

EN
EW

AL
 A

U
TH

O
RI

TY
W

RI
TE

-O
FF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
FO

R 
AM

P 
2

AS
 O

F 
D

EC
EM

BE
R 

31
, 2

02
4

1
12

1 
PU

T,
 

IN
AR

AJ
AN

7/
1/

20
24

N
O

N
-C

O
M

PL
IA

N
CE

: 
VI

O
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LE

AS
E 

AG
RE

EM
EN

T
2/

24
/2

02
4

7/
5/

20
24

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  (
36

0.
00

)
 $

   
   

   
 5

20
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

50
.0

0)
 $

   
   

   
   

10
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

15
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

25
.0

0 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 

da
te

2
11

4A
 A

TD
, 

IN
AR

AJ
AN

8/
1/

20
24

30
 D

AY
 V

O
LU

N
TA

RY
4/

29
/2

02
4

8/
19

/2
02

4
 $

   
   

   
   

   
2,

96
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

50
.0

0)
 $

   
   

 2
,8

10
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

15
.0

0 
 $

   
   

 2
,8

25
.0

0 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 

da
te

3
12

9B
 A

TD
, 

IN
AR

AJ
AN

10
/1

4/
20

24
N

O
N

-C
O

M
PL

IA
N

CE
: 

VI
O

LA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

LE
AS

E 
AG

RE
EM

EN
T

8/
30

/2
02

4
10

/1
8/

20
24

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
71

2.
95

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
50

.0
0)

 $
   

   
   

 5
62

.9
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
15

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

 5
77

.9
5 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 
da

te

4
27

 P
D

, 
TA

LO
FO

FO
9/

16
/2

02
4

N
O

N
-C

O
M

PL
IA

N
CE

: 
VI

O
LA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LE

AS
E 

AG
RE

EM
EN

T
5/

1/
20

24
9/

26
/2

02
4

 $
   

   
   

   
   

1,
53

4.
03

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
50

.0
0)

 $
   

   
 1

,3
84

.0
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
15

.0
0 

 $
   

   
 1

,3
99

.0
3 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 
da

te

5
21

 P
D

, 
TA

LO
FO

FO
9/

2/
20

24
N

O
N

-C
O

M
PL

IA
N

CE
: 

VI
O

LA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

LE
AS

E 
AG

RE
EM

EN
T

9/
15

/2
02

4
9/

23
/2

02
4

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 (9

5.
00

)
 $

   
   

   
 3

05
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

50
.0

0)
 $

   
   

   
   

60
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

15
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

75
.0

0 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 

da
te

TO
TA

L:
4,

75
1.

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
82

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

(7
50

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
82

6.
98

$ 
   

   
 

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

4,
90

1.
98

$ 
   

   
 

Co
m

m
en

ts
U

ni
t #

M
ov

e 
O

ut
 D

at
e

Re
as

on
 fo

r T
er

m
in

at
io

n
La

st
 P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

e
Cl

os
ed

 O
ut

 
Pr

oc
es

se
d 

Da
te

 (U
til

ity
 

Re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t)
/R

e
nt

 A
ft

er
 M

ov
e 

O
ut

 ( 
a 

) 

 C
le

an
in

g 
Ch

ar
ge

s 
( b

 ) 
 S

ec
ur

ity
 D

ep
os

it/
Pa

ym
en

t 
( c

 ) 

 A
/R

 B
al

an
ce

 
(C

lo
se

d)
 a

s 
of

 
09

/3
0/

20
24

 
(a

+b
-c

) 

 D
RT

 F
ee

s 
 A

/R
 B

al
an

ce
 

(C
lo

se
d)

 +
 D

RT
 

Fe
es

 

1 
O

F 
1

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 M
ar

ia
 M

 M
en

di
ol

a

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 11 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 12 of 27



20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

W
rit

e 
O

ff 
Am

ou
nt

4,
96

4
5,

32
9

24
,4

83
8,

23
4

65
,8

93
6,

92
3

Re
nt

 B
al

an
ce

2,
54

3
2,

74
6

14
,4

99
7,

41
9

47
,8

14
1,

63
3

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 C
ha

rg
es

4,
11

1
3,

76
8

13
,4

94
1,

49
0

20
,1

88
4,

79
0

W
O

RK
 O

RD
ER

S
2,

07
7

1,
04

0

LA
TE

 F
EE

S

 -

 1
0,

00
0

 2
0,

00
0

 3
0,

00
0

 4
0,

00
0

 5
0,

00
0

 6
0,

00
0

 7
0,

00
0

In US Dollars Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

AM
P 

3 
W

rit
e 

O
ff

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 13 of 27



G
U

A
M

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
N

D
 U

RB
AN

 R
EN

EW
AL

 A
U

TH
O

RI
TY

W
RI

TE
-O

FF
 B

A
LA

N
CE

S 
FO

R 
AM

P 
3

As
 o

f 

N
O

.
U

N
IT

 #
M

-O
 D

AT
E

RE
AS

O
N

 F
O

R 
TE

RM
IN

AT
IO

N
D

AT
E 

O
F 

LA
ST

 
PA

YM
EN

T
D

AT
E 

CL
O

SE
-

O
U

T 
PR

O
CE

SS
ED

 (U
R)

 o
r R

en
t 

Ba
la

nc
e 

af
te

r 
m

ov
e-

ou
t 

 L
AT

E 
FE

ES
 

 W
O

RK
 

O
RD

ER
S 

 C
le

an
in

g 
Ch

ar
ge

s 
 L

eg
al

, 
Co

ur
t F

ee
s 

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
D

ep
os

it 
 D

RT
 F

EE
S 

 A
/R

 B
AL

 O
N

 
AC

CO
U

N
T 

CO
M

M
EN

TS

1
70

M
AO

12
/4

/2
02

3
LE

AS
E 

TE
RM

IN
AT

IO
N

 - 
O

FF
 IS

LA
N

D
 

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
U

R 
RE

CI
PI

EN
T

5/
9/

20
24

10
3.

00
$ 

   
   

 
1,

88
9.

10
$ 

  
(1

50
.0

0)
$ 

  
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
1,

85
7.

10
$ 

   
   

   
RT

S 
/ U

N
CL

AI
M

ED
 M

AI
L,

 
N

O
 R

ES
PS

O
N

SE

2
97

M
AO

10
/3

1/
20

24
LE

AS
E 

TE
RM

IN
AT

IO
N

 - 
LE

AS
E 

VI
O

LA
TI

O
N

S
6/

3/
20

24
11

/2
2/

20
24

1,
54

8.
74

$ 
   

1,
76

8.
17

$ 
  

(1
50

.0
0)

$ 
  

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

3,
18

1.
91

$ 
   

   
   

M
AI

L 
CE

RT
IF

IE
D

 R
EC

EI
VE

D
,

N
O

 R
ES

PO
N

SE

3
85

M
AO

9/
30

/2
02

4
LE

AS
E 

TE
RM

IN
AT

IO
N

 - 
U

TI
LI

TY
 

D
IS

CO
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
7/

16
/2

02
4

10
/1

/2
02

4
71

3.
97

$ 
   

   
(1

50
.0

0)
$ 

  
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
57

8.
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
RT

S 
/ U

N
CL

AI
M

ED
 M

AI
L,

 
N

O
 R

ES
PS

O
N

SE

4
51

M
AO

7/
5/

20
24

LE
AS

E 
TE

RM
IN

AT
IO

N
 - 

LE
AS

E 
VI

O
LA

TI
O

N
S

U
R 

RE
CI

PI
EN

T
12

/1
/2

02
4

(1
9.

00
)

$ 
   

   
  

1,
03

9.
93

$ 
  

41
8.

93
$ 

   
   

(1
50

.0
0)

$ 
  

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

1,
30

4.
86

$ 
   

   
   

RT
S 

/ U
N

CL
AI

M
ED

 M
AI

L,
 

N
O

 R
ES

PS
O

N
SE

1,
63

2.
74

$ 
   

1,
03

9.
93

$ 
  

4,
79

0.
17

$ 
  

(6
00

.0
0)

$ 
  

60
.0

0
$ 

   
   

6,
92

2.
84

$ 
   

   
   

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 14 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 15 of 27



20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

W
rit

e 
O

ff 
Am

ou
nt

4,
58

2
20

,8
71

11
,2

99
13

,8
67

11
,2

79
4,

69
6

Re
nt

 B
al

an
ce

1,
68

3
13

,8
58

1,
37

2
9,

52
3

5,
17

6
4,

43
2

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 C
ha

rg
es

4,
84

9
8,

96
2

10
,3

00
5,

96
4

7,
18

3
53

4

W
or

k 
O

rd
er

s

La
te

 F
ee

s

 -

 5
,0

00

 1
0,

00
0

 1
5,

00
0

 2
0,

00
0

 2
5,

00
0

In US Dollars Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

AM
P 

4 
W

rit
e 

O
ff

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 16 of 27



G
U

AM
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

N
D

 U
RB

AN
 R

EN
EW

AL
 A

U
TH

O
RI

TY
W

RI
TE

-O
FF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
FO

R 
AM

P 
4

As
 o

f 

N
O

.
U

N
IT

 #
M

-O
 D

AT
E

RE
AS

O
N

 F
O

R 
TE

RM
IN

AT
IO

N
D

AT
E 

O
F 

LA
ST

 
PA

YM
EN

T
D

AT
E 

CL
O

SE
-O

U
T 

PR
O

CE
SS

ED
 (U

R)
 o

r R
en

t 
Ba

la
nc

e 
af

te
r 

m
ov

e-
ou

t 

 C
le

an
in

g 
Ch

ar
ge

s 
 L

eg
al

, 
Co

ur
t F

ee
s 

 D
RT

 F
EE

S 
 S

ec
ur

ity
 

D
ep

os
it 

 A
/R

 B
AL

 O
N

 
AC

CO
U

N
T 

CO
M

M
EN

TS

12
BR

DB
8

5/
3/

20
24

N
O

N
-P

AY
M

EN
T 

O
F 

RE
N

T
2/

23
/2

02
4

7/
29

/2
02

4
4,

30
2.

00
$ 

   
 

18
4.

20
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

    
(1

50
.0

0)
$ 

   
   

4,
35

1.
20

$ 
   

 
N

O
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 T
O

 F
O

LL
O

W
-U

P 
LE

TT
ER

.

44
BD

AM
6/

12
/2

02
4

30
-D

AY
 V

O
LU

N
TA

RY
 N

O
TI

CE
 

G
IV

EN
 

5/
24

/2
02

4
9/

27
/2

02
4

13
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
35

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
    

(1
50

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
34

5.
00

$ 
   

   
 

N
O

 R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P 

LE
TT

ER

4,
43

2.
00

$ 
   

 
53

4.
20

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
    

(3
00

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
4,

69
6.

20
$ 

   
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 17 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 18 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 19 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 20 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 21 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 22 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 23 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 24 of 27



 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 25 of 27



 
  

 Change Order No. 1 

GHURA-24-004 

 Renovation and Upgrade of Basketball Court and  

Construction of Generator Room at Toto Gardens  

February 14, 2025 

 
Mr. Michael J. Lee         

General Manager 

O.H. Construction  

P.O. Box 1197 

Tamuning, Guam 96931    

 

SUBJECT: Change Order No. 1 - GHURA-24-004; Renovation and Upgrade of Basketball Court and  

                          Construction of Generator Room at Toto Gardens  
 

 

Dear Mr. Lee:   

 

In connection with your Contract dated May 03, 2025, for the renovation and upgrade of basketball court and 

construction of generator room at Toto Gardens . The following change order is in accordance with Section 28, 

General Conditions of the contract for construction shall be amended to include the added changes: 

 

Provide all labor, materials, supervision, transportation and equipment for the complete construction and 

installation, according to the contract plans, specifications and described scope of work for the additional items 

listed below. 

 

Subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, any equitable adjustment of the contract price and the contract 

time is established as follows: 

  
 

1. The Addition of Items are defined per the attached break down for the Supply of Materials and Labor for the 

Renovation and upgrade of basketball court and construction of generator room at Toto Gardens as: 

2.  

 

 Material and Labor description Amount 

1.  New Basketball Court Flooring work. 

a. Demolition and disposal of existing concrete and 

asphalt 

b. Civil work; Grading with Sub- Base materials, 

Install base Course materials, Compaction, 

Concrete pouring. 

 

 

$36,000.00 

 

 

$118,000.00 

 

 

 

2.  Deduction for removal ½ inch existing surface/  (-$12,000.00) 

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 26 of 27

http://www.ghura.org/


   3. Breaking and Digging of Concrete Slab on Column Footing 
(under base course) 

$11,000.00 

  4. New Generator supply and installation 50 KW/ 50 KVA ‘ 
“Standby” 120/240 volts     

$63,000.00 

  5. Removal and Disposal of existing two 45 ft containers $9600.00 

   

  Total: $225,600.00     

 

 

Original Contract: $1,010,000.00 Contract NTP Date: May 28,2024 

Changes Approved: $0 Contract Duration: 
                                              

330 Calendar Days 

This Change Order: $225,600.00 Extension This Change Order: 68 calender days 

Adjusted Contract Amount: $1,235,600.00 New Completion Date: 
  

June 30, 2025 

 

 

  

 ACCEPTED:  O.H. Construction   

 

    _________________________                                                                                                                   

    Mr. Michael J. Lee  

    General Manager 

 

    Date: _________________                      

 

      

    GUAM HOUSING & URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

                                                                 

               

                                                    ____________________________ 

    Elizabeth F. Napoli   

    Executive Director  

            

                Date: _________________ 

 

 

 

  

 
Board Meeting of February 25, 2025

 
PAGE 27 of 27


	FY 2025 Write of as of 12.31.24.pdf
	AMP1 Letter 12.31.24
	AMP1 Chart 12.31.24
	AMP1 Write Off 12.31.24
	AMP2 Letter 12.31.24
	AMP2 Chart 12.31.24
	AMP2 Write Off 12.31.24
	AMP3 Letter 12.31.24
	AMP3 Chart 12.31.24
	AMP3 Write Off 12.31.24
	AMP4 Letter 12.31.24
	AMP4 Chart 12.31.24
	AMP4 Write Off 12.31.24




